
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
2.00 pm THURSDAY, 7 JUNE 2018 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS A/B - NEATH CIVIC CENTRE 

 

 
 
 

PART 1 
 

1.  To receive any declarations of interest from Members   
 

2.  To receive the Minutes of the Social Care, Health and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee held on 10th May 2018  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

3.  To select appropriate items from the Cabinet Board Agenda for pre-
scrutiny (Cabinet Board reports enclosed for Scrutiny Members).   
 

4.  Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairman pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972   
 

5.  Access to Meetings to resolve to exclude the public for the following 
item(s) pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the relevant exempt paragraphs of Part 
4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act.   
 
PART 2 
 

6.  To select appropriate private items from the Cabinet Board Agenda 
for pre-scrutiny (Cabinet Board Reports enclosed for Scrutiny 
Members).   
 

 
S.Phillips 

Chief Executive 



 
Civic Centre 
Port Talbot Thursday 31st May 2018  
 
 
 
Committee Membership:  
 
Chairperson: Councillor L.M.Purcell 

 
Vice 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.E.Freeguard 
 

Councillors: 
 

H.C.Clarke, A.P.H.Davies, C.Galsworthy, J.Miller, 
S.Paddison, S.H.Reynolds, D.Whitelock, 
O.S.Davies, C.Williams, A.McGrath and 
C.Edwards 
 

 
 
Notes:  
 
 (1)  If Committee Members or non-Committee Members wish to have 

relevant items put on the agenda for future meetings, then please 
notify the Chief Executive/Chair eight days before the meeting. 

 
(2) If non-Committee Members wish to attend for an item of interest, then 

prior notification needs to be given (by 12.00 noon on the day before 
the meeting).  Non-Committee Members may speak but not vote, or 
move or second any motion. 

 
(3) For pre scrutiny arrangements, the Chair will normally recommend 

forthcoming executive items for discussion/challenge.  It is also open 
to Committee Members to request items to be raised - though 
Members are asked to be selective here in regard to important 
issues. 

 
(4) The relevant Cabinet Board Members will also be invited to be 

present at the meeting for Scrutiny/ Consultation purposes. 
 
(5) Would the Scrutiny Committee Members please bring the Cabinet 

Board papers with them to the meeting. 
 



- 1 - 
 

100518 

SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

(Committee Rooms A/B - Neath Civic Centre) 
 

Members Present:  10 May 2018 
 
 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor L.M.Purcell 
 

Vice Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.E.Freeguard 
 

Councillors: 
 

A.P.H.Davies, C.Galsworthy, J.Miller, 
S.H.Reynolds, D.Whitelock, O.S.Davies, 
C.Williams, A.McGrath and C.Edwards 
 

Officers In 
Attendance 
 

A.Jarrett, Mrs.A.Thomas, Ms.K.Warren, 
J.Hodges, Chele.Howard, G. Powell, Davies, 
E.Tanner, D.Tiddy, S. Curran and N. Jones 
 

Cabinet Invitees: 
 

Councillors A.R.Lockyer and P.D.Richards 
 

 

 
1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS 

 
 
The following Members made a declaration of Interest at the 
commencement of the meeting: 
 
Cllr C Edwards: As she is a member of the Neath Port     

Talbot Community Health Council 
 
Cllr C Galsworthy:   As she is a Personal Assistant for her 

Mother under the Direct Payments 
scheme.  

 
Cllr S Freeguard: As she is a member of the Neath Port    

Talbot Community Health Council 
 
Cllr O Davies: As his daughter is a carer in a Local 

Care Home. 
 
Cllr A McGrath: Private report of the Director of Social 

Services Health & Housing re: Provision 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



- 2 - 
 

100518 

of Educational Services at Hillside as he 
is a governor of Cefn Season 
Comprehensive School. 

 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON 10TH MAY 2018 
 
The Committee noted the Minutes. 
 

3. PRESENTATION ON ASSET BASED APPROACH 
 

The Committee received a Presentation on the Asset Based   
Approach. 
 
Members asked if it was possible to hold multi agency surgeries 
in local hubs. Officer explained that pilots are ongoing and 
partner agencies such as Health and the Police are working 
with the Council to develop the idea. Members asked if any 
local hubs have been identified and discussed the possible 
usage of existing buildings in communities such as libraries and 
centres. It was noted that Local Area Co-ordinators do not have 
a fixed base and work throughout the community.  
 
Members were pleased to note the ongoing work with other 
directorates on the Asset Based Approach and agreed a 
Council wide approach is required.  
 
Members asked if the phrase ‘Co-Production’ could be 
reconsidered. 
 
Members thanked Officers for the presentation and were overall 
very supportive of the Asset Based Approach and looked 
forward to receiving continual updates as the approach 
progresses.  
 

4. PRE-SCRUTINY 
 
The Committee scrutinised the following matters: 
 
Cabinet Board Proposals 
 
4.1  Western Bay Pooled Fund for Care Homes Options Paper 
 

Page 4



- 3 - 
 

100518 

The Committee received information in relation to the Western 
Bay Pooled Fund for Care Homes as contained within the 
circulated report. 
 
Members asked for clarification on the term ‘cross-
subsidisation’ and were informed that it is basically a legal 
process whereby Neath Port Talbot tax payers’ money does not 
integrate into other Local Authority areas. 
 
Members were concerned that the report included different 
opinions and views from AM’s and the Welsh Government but 
were informed that there had been ongoing negotiations and 
that views have progressed and developed and Members were 
pleased to note that the Minister was now in agreement with the 
proposal at this stage.  
 
The Committee discussed the potential situation of Bridgend 
leaving the Health Board area and the impact that this could 
have. Members noted that it would have an effect on market 
balance and commissioning priorities but it was noted that if 
Bridgend do withdraw there will be no risk to the financial 
position of the Council in relation to the option recommended in 
this report.  
 
Members asked for clarification on the statement that ‘…initially 
the pooled fund will not apply to placements made under s117 
or in relation to care home services specialising in functional 
mental health where older persons may reside.’ Officers stated 
that they will circulate an explanation to Members. 
 
Members asked for clarification on the abbreviations FNC and 
CHC. Officers explained FNC is Funded Nursing Care and CHC 
is Community Health Care. Members were concerned about the 
repetition of abbreviations (such as LAC standing for both Local 
Area Coordinator and Looked after Children). 
 
Members asked for an update on the creation of a common 
contract to standardise contract terms and conditions across 
the four organisations which was scheduled for completion by 
April 2018. Officers explained work was still ongoing but the 
contract is nearing completion.  
 
The Committee noted the plan to create a shared methodology 
but not a shared rate and asked if the difference in rates would 

Page 5



- 4 - 
 

100518 

reflect local differences in need. It was explained that the 
methodology is agreed with providers as to how to set and 
agree rates and that fees are different to reflect geographic 
differences. 
 
Members noted that the Council must reach a position of 
compliance and that the option presented in the report allows 
the Council to cooperate with the requirements set out.  
 
Members stated that in the assessment chart for the options set 
out for consideration in the report no option provided optimum 
results. It was noted that evaluation would be ongoing in 
partnership with Welsh Government as the project progresses.  
 
Members noted the positive aspects of pooled budgets such as 
aligned commissioning and freeing up of budgets.  
 
Following scrutiny, the committee were supportive of the 
proposals to be considered at Cabinet Board. 

 
4.3  Update on the Commissioning Strategy for Care Homes for 

Older People: Neath Port Talbot Implementation Plan 
2016/2019 and the Older Persons Residential Care Homes in 
Neath Port Talbot Report 

 
 The Committee received information in relation to the Update 

on the Commissioning Strategy for Care Home for Older People 
as contained within the circulated report. 
Members asked if the Market Position Statement of June 2017 
be circulated. 
 
The Committee asked for further information in relation to the 
Regional Quality Framework. They were informed that there are 
annual joint monitoring visits in partnership with ABMU and 
feedback is assessed and provided.  
 
The Committee asked how well the early indicators that identify 
concerns at care homes are working. Officers explained they 
are working very well and that issues are being identified before 
they escalate. Members looked forward to receiving further 
information on this data as it becomes available.  

 
 Members noted that the establishment of a Nurse Recruitment 

protocol is ongoing. 

Page 6



- 5 - 
 

100518 

 
 Members noted that the Escalating Concerns Policy was a 

regional framework developed to support and overcome issues 
by early identification. 

 
 Members asked for further information on ‘Patient Flow 

Interface Groups’. They discussed the creation of patient led 
groups in and out of hospital discharge ensuring that processes 
were monitored and fit for purpose.  

 
Members commented that the map that illustrates the spread of 
care homes across Neath Port Talbot may not be accurate and 
agreed that a grid image may be a better way to see the 
information. Officers agreed to re consider the information 
represented on the map. 
 
Following scrutiny it was agreed that the report be noted.  
 

 
5. ACCESS TO MEETINGS 

 
Resolved: that pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the 

Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
for the following items of business which involved 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 12 and 14 of Part 4 of 
Schedule 12A to the above Act. 

6. PRE-SCRUTINY 
 
The Committee scrutinised the following matters: 
 
Cabinet Board Proposals 
 
6.1  Provision of Educational Services at Hillside 
 
The Committee received information in relation to Educational 
Services at Hillside as contained within the circulated report. 
 
Officers notified Members the report was an item for information not 
decision as stated in the report. 
 
Officers gave further information in relation to the ‘Charlie Taylor’ 
review which is an investigation as to how education is delivered 
within the Youth Justice Sector. 

Page 7



- 6 - 
 

100518 

 
Following scrutiny it was agreed that the report be noted.  

 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 8


	Agenda
	2 To receive the Minutes of the Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee held on 10th May 2018
	Minutes


